
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING
BILL LUXFORD STUDIO (ROOM 113)

THURSDAY, JULY 31, 2014
8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Larry Hudkins, Chair
Brent Smoyer, Vice Chair
Jane Raybould
Roma Amundson

Commissioners Absent: Deb Schorr

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on July 30, 2014.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
8:33 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JULY 24, 2014, STAFF
MEETING

MOTION: Raybould moved and Amundson seconded approval of the minutes of the
July 24, 2014 Staff Meeting.  

Hudkins noted there was a presentation on the South Haymarket Neighborhood Plan
and said he would like the minutes amended to reflect that the “K” Street Building on
the corner of 9th and K Street serves as the Records Center for the City, County and
State, in addition to housing offices. 

ROLL CALL:  Amundson, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr and Smoyer were
absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0. 

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/07/31/2014



 2 ADDITIONS TO AGENDA

None were stated.

 3 LABOR NEGOTIATIONS - Doug McDaniel, Lincoln-Lancaster County
Human Resources Director; Nicole Gross and Amy Sadler, Compensation
Technicians; Richard Grabow, Deputy County Attorney

See Item 4.

 4 PENDING LITIGATION - Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager 

MOTION: Raybould moved and Amundson seconded to enter Executive Session at
8:35 a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards
to labor negotiations and pending litigation. 

The Chair restated the motion for the record.

ROLL CALL:  Raybould, Amundson and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr and Smoyer were
absent from voting. Motion carried 3-0.

Smoyer arrived at the meeting at 8:36 a.m.

Amundson exited the meeting at 9:20 a.m.

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Raybould seconded to exit Executive Session at 9:22
a.m.  Smoyer, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Amundson and Schorr
were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0.

Amundson returned to the meeting at 9:23 a.m. 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Institute (PCORI) Fee for Post
Employment Health Plans (PEHP)

Doug McDaniel, Lincoln-Lancaster County Human Resources Director, said the City and
County were notified last year that Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Institute
(PCORI) fees were required for qualified health plans and Post Employment Health
Plans (PEHP).  The City and County took the position the fee should not apply to PEHP
plans.  The County has now received another notice from Nationwide Retirement
Solutions (NRS), which is one of the administrators of the County’s PEHP investments,
that it must pay the PCORI fees.  McDaniel said the fee is $2.00 “per head” and
estimated it will apply to 24 individuals.  He said he contacted AON Risk Solutions,
which provides employees benefit consulting services for the County’s insurance

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/07/31/2014



programs, for a legal opinion and their attorney indicated the County’s Voluntary
Employees’ Beneficiary Association (VEBA) Trust Funds are subject to PCORI fees. 
McDaniel said he is still unclear whether the fee would apply to every PEHP participant
or just those who are on the County’s health plan.  

Hudkins asked McDaniel whether he has requested legal opinions from the City or
County Attorney.  McDaniel said he has not, although they have been kept apprised of
the issue. 

It was noted that today is the deadline for submission of the fees.

MOTION: Raybould moved and Smoyer seconded to: 1) Authorize payment of the
Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Institute (PCORI) fees for
participants in the Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP), as designated
by Doug McDaniel, Lincoln-Lancaster County Human Resources Director,
and Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer; and 2) Indicate the intent
to revisit the issue.  Amundson, Raybould, Smoyer and Hudkins voted
aye.  Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 5 HEATHER, MIDPOINTE AND 24-HOUR CRISIS LINE UPDATE -
Topher Hansen, CenterPointe Director; Gini Davis, Program Director,
CenterPointe Outpatient Treatment Program; Brenda Mueller, Program
Director for Community Transitions; Annette Haller, Program Director for
MidPointe

Gini Davis, Program Director, CenterPointe Outpatient Treatment Program, said the
number of telephone calls to the 24-Hour Crisis Line has increased by 300% since
CenterPointe took the line fully over from the Community Mental Health Center
(CMHC) in January.  She said they currently have two full-time therapists and five
contractors available to answer calls in the evening and on weekends.  She said they
are also looking at adding licensed mental health professionals who would be able to
assist the Lincoln Police Department (LPD) by going out on calls and assessing
whether someone needs to be placed in Emergency Protective Custody (EPC).  

Hudkins asked whether the same services would be available to the County Sheriff’s
Office.  Topher Hansen, Director, CenterPointe, Inc., explained they are involved in the
City area and said Region V and Targeted Adult Service Coordination (TASC) serves
the County area.  He also noted outreach efforts to get individuals connected to
services.

Brenda Mueller, Program Director for the Community Transitions Program, formerly
known as The Heather, said they had seven consumers in the program when they took
over in April and now have 14.  She said they provide individual and group teaching as

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/07/31/2014



part of the rehabilitation as well as outings for participants.  Most of the consumers
also attend one of the day programs. 

Annette Haller, Program Director for MidPointe, said the former Midtown Center (a day
rehabilitation program for individuals with symptoms of severe mental illness) was
merged with CenterPointe’s day rehabilitation program in October and renamed
MidPointe.  She said the average daily census is 40 individuals, with a two to four
week waiting list.  Haller said they work on rehabilitation skills and developing their
activities of daily living, such as hygiene, budgeting, job skills, etc.  She said they also
provide outings in the community so consumers can work on those skills.   

Hansen said he does not know the outcome of the assessment of the transition but
said consumers have indicated satisfaction with the direction it is moving in.  He said
CenterPointe wants to help consumers with the rehabilitation process and to find
structured activity that best fits them, but said he believes there is still a gap in the
service system in terms of what is needed by consumers and what is available.

 6 ABANDONED HOUSE AT 9625 PANAMA ROAD - Mel Goddard, Chief
Building Inspector

Mel Goddard, Chief Building Inspector, circulated photographs of the abandoned house
at 9625 Panama Road (Exhibit A).  He noted his department received a complaint
about this property six years ago and convinced the owner at that time to remove a
dilapidated garage.  Goddard said he does not anticipate that the owner will be willing
to address the house and Building and Safety will have to proceed with condemnation
of the building.  He estimated the cost could run more than $20,000, including the
delivery of materials to a proper dump site, and asked the Board to assist with the
cost. 

Hudkins asked Goddard to check whether there are any taxes owed or liens on the
property.

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, appeared and said she will work with
Building and Safety through the process.

Board consensus was to proceed as outlined.

 7 COUNTY CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 14019, AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO
AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AGR); AND COUNTY SPECIAL
PERMIT NO. 14017, BRONCO HILLS ESTATES COMMUNITY UNIT
PLAN (CUP) - Steve Henrichsen, Development Review Manager,
Planning Department

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/07/31/2014



Steve Henrichsen, Development Review Manager, Planning Department, gave an
overview of County Change of Zone No. 14019, Agricultural (AG) to Agricultural
Residential (AGR) and County Special Permit No. 14017, Bronco Hills Estates
Community Unit Plan (CUP), a request to develop 10 single-family lots on 42 acres at
Southwest 56th Street and West Denton Road.  He noted there are existing acreages
and acreage zoning north, south and east of the proposed development.  Henrichsen
said the property is not shown as low density residential but meets the criteria in the
Comprehensive Plan.  There is sufficient water quantity and quality on the site.  He
said larger lots are planned next to the floodplain area and no impact from the
development is anticipated.  The Planning Department and Planning Commission have
recommended approval of the Change of Zone and conditional approval of the Special
Permit.  NOTE: The Board will hold public hearings on County Change of Zone No.
14019 and County Special Permit No. 14017 at the Tuesday, August 12, 2014 County
Board of Commissioners Meeting.

 8 PROPOSED FEE UPDATES (ON-SITE WASTE WATER TREATMENT;
BODY PIERCING AND ART ESTABLISHMENTS; INSPECTION OF
ONE-SITE WATER AND WASTE WATER SYSTEMS PRIOR TO
TRANSFER; AND AIR POLLUTION REGULATIONS AND
STANDARDS) - Judy Halstead, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health
Department (LLCHD) Director; Scott Holmes, Environmental Public Health
Division Manager, LLCHD

Judy Halstead, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD) Director, said the
Board will hold a public hearing on the proposed fee increases on August 26th and 
proposed bringing two fee years (Fiscal Year 2015 and 2016) to the Board to consider
to be consistent with the City, which has a biennial budget.  She noted the department
typically increases its fees 3% each year and said the industries have indicated they
prefer small incremental increases for planning purposes.  Halstead noted they will
also schedule resolutions addressing body piercing or art establishments, although,
there currently are none operating in the County. 

There was no objection to the proposal.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

B. Visitor Improvement Fund Grant Request from Lincoln Children’s Zoo
($200,000)

Information regarding the grant request was disseminated (Exhibit B).

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/07/31/2014



MOTION: Smoyer moved and Amundson seconded to refer the grant request to the
Visitors Promotion Committee (VPC) for review and recommendation.
Smoyer, Amundson, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.
ACTION ITEMS

A. Authorize Reimbursement to Kerry Eagan ($332.70) and Doug Cyr
($344.50) for Airfare to Prudential Pension Client Conference from the
Pension Expense Account

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Amundson seconded to approve the reimbursement. 
Amundson, Raybould, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 9 ON-LINE SAFETY TRAINING OPTION PROGRAM (STOP) CLASS -
Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director; Joe Kelly, County
Attorney; Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney 

Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director, said she has been working with the
National Safety Council (NSC), Nebraska to bring on-line Safety Training Option
Program (STOP) classes to Lancaster County.  She said the plan is to “piggyback” on
NSC Nebraska’s contract with their national organization to provide the classes. 
Etherton said adjustments to the STOP fees will cover the cost of the contract. The
class cost will be $19.20 and the contract will be for 3,000 classes.  The County may
purchase additional classes or transfer any unused classes to the next contract term. 

Joe Kelly, County Attorney, said the proposal to increase STOP fees must be approved
by the Nebraska Crime Commission.

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, said Douglas County had 39% on-line class
usage when it began to offer that option, with no marketing.  It has since increased to
50%. 

10 BUDGET UPDATE - Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer
A) University of Nebraska - Lincoln (UNL) Operator and
Switchboard Services

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, disseminated the following documents
(Exhibits C and D):

• Lancaster County, Property Tax Funded Budgets, Fiscal Year (FY)
2015 Requested Compared to FY 2014 Adopted

• Lancaster County Summary of Expenditure Requirements

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/07/31/2014



Meyer said the budget has been “stretched” everywhere it possibly can and depending
how this year goes, there may not be too many more places to “stretch.”  He
discussed the measures that were taken to balance the budget, including transferring
$1,250,000 from the Keno Fund, shifting 1.3 cents of the Railroad Transportation
Safety District’s (RTSD’s) levy to the County, and reducing the County Engineer’s
budget.  The Chair noted the RTSD has sufficient funds to finish projects currently
slated and said the Board remains committed to the South Beltway Project.

Meyer noted property valuation figures will be released on August 20th and a public
hearing on the budget will be held on August 26th.

Raybould suggested the Board continue to have budget discussions with elected
officials and directors, rather than waiting until the Midyear Budget Review.  Meyer
noted the Budget Monitoring Committee is also scheduled to meet on August 12th at
3:00 p.m. in Room 113 (Bill Luxford Studio) to discuss the County’s budget. 

Meyer said he will file the proposed budget with the County Clerk’s Office later in the
day and has posted it on the Budget and Fiscal Office’s webpage.

A) University of Nebraska - Lincoln (UNL) Operator and Switchboard
Services 

Bob Walla, Assistant Purchasing Agent, said the agreement with UNL for operator and
switchboard services for the City and County has been in existence for approximately
28 years and costs the City $35,000 and the County $22,000 per year.  He said
approximately 1,800 calls to the main telephone number, which is (402) 441-7171, go
through the UNL switchboard each month and are answered or transferred to the
appropriate department.  Walla said if that telephone number is retained, the calls will
have to go through the UNL switchboard or be assigned to a City or County
department.  Another option would be to remove that telephone number from the
“Blue Pages” (listing of government offices) in the telephone book, which would
eliminate the City and County’s commitment to the UNL switchboard.

Dan Nolte, County Clerk, said his office would be willing to assist with switchboard
duties but does not have enough information to determine how it would work or what
the cost would be.  Walla said some departments require 24-hour service and use an
answering service.

Walla said there are some other steps that could be taken to improve customer
service, such as including an frequently asked questions (FAQ) page on the City and
County’s website and listing frequently contacted departments in bold type in the
telephone book.  He said the Purchasing Department could develop a Request for
Proposal (RFP) for answering services.  He said the City and County need to decide
whether they want to pursue a different arrangement for the main telephone number,

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/07/31/2014



explaining the commitment to UNL will remain in place until the “Blue Pages” are
changed.

11 ACTION ITEMS

A. Authorize Reimbursement to Kerry Eagan ($332.70) and Doug Cyr
($344.50) for Airfare to Prudential Pension Client Conference from the
Pension Expense Account

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

12 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

13 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Institute (PCORI) Fee for Post
Employment Health Plans (PEHP)

B. Visitor Improvement Fund Grant Request from Lincoln Children’s Zoo
($200,000)

Items A and B were moved forward on the agenda.

14 PENDING

There were no pending items.

15 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Procurement Advisory Committee - Schorr

Item was held.

B. Guest Reader - Schorr

Item was held.

C. Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA) Monthly Meeting -
Amundson

Amundson said discussion focused on the Lancaster County Agricultural Society’s
proposal to refinance the construction bonds that were used to build the Lancaster
Event Center and the County’s budget.  She said concerns were expressed regarding

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/07/31/2014



rising costs at the Lancaster County Adult Detention Facility (LCADF).  An audit of
expenses and how services are provided and consideration of out-of-county housing of
inmates were suggested.

D. Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public Agency (JPA) -
Hudkins, Smoyer

Smoyer said the JPA approved claims totaling $96,580.20 from Sampson Construction
Company, the Construction Manager at-Risk, and Dickey & Burham, Inc., for jail
warehouse improvements.  Hudkins said he relayed that a spokesperson for the
Watchdogs of Lincoln Government, appeared at the July 15, 2014 County Board of
Commissioners Meeting and inquired about settling of the Lancaster County Adult
Detention Facility’s (LCADF’s) foundation and whether doors are operating property.  
He said Mike Thurber, Corrections Director, indicated he is not aware of any problems. 

16 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk, noted the Board is scheduled to take final action on
property valuation protests on Tuesday, August 6th at 1:00 p.m.  She said little
additional information has been submitted and Tom Kubert, Referee Coordinator, feels
he can finish quickly.  Beattie said the Board could take final action at the regular
Board of Equalization (BOE) Meeting scheduled on that date instead.  NOTE: The BOE
Meeting takes place following the 10:30 a.m. County Board of Commissioners Meeting. 
Board members concurred with the suggestion.

Beattie also informed the Board that several individuals who have filed property
valuation protests have asked to speak directly to the BOE.  She said her office
informed them that individual hearings with the BOE were not scheduled this year,
adding it is up to the Board whether to allow any testimony.

There was consensus to add a Public Comment section to all future BOE agendas. 

17 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Raybould moved and Smoyer seconded to adjourn the meeting at 10:30
a.m.  Raybould, Amundson, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 9 BOC/STAFF/07/31/2014




























